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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Dear Investor,
On behall of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present Alhamra Islamic Income
Fund accounts review for the yvear ended June 30, 2024,

Economy Review

Fiscal year 2024 marked a period of macroeconomic recovery for PPakistan, averting a
looming default brought about by continued economic mismanagement. This tumaround
was pnmarily attributed to Pakistan entering a new IMF program afier several months of
delay. The government secured a much-needed Stand-by Arrangement (SBA) facility ol
USD 3.0 billion from the IMF in June 23, and managed o receive timely rollovers from
friendly countries. It also showed unwavering commitment to remain compliant with the
IMF targets and as a result government was able to successfully complete the program.

The caretaker government took office in August 2023 and immediately faced speculative
pressure on the currency, causing it to spike to a record high of 307 mn the mterbank
markel. Exchange rate m informal market reached a higher of near 330 PKR/USD
reflecting an increase of speculative activity and rampant uncertainty. 'The government
took decisive steps agamnst smuggling of dollar, abuse of Afghan Transit and illegal
money dealers in September 2023, which spurred a rapid recovery in the exchange rate.
This helped in improving confidence and narrower spreads in open and interbank rates.
The authorities also placed mechanisms to strictly monitor exchange rate payments to
manage the overall external balance. Combination of both adminmistration measures and
steps to discipline external and fiscal accounts helped restore overall stability. The USD
PKR close the year at 278.3 apprecialing by 2.6% since the starl of the year.

Country posted a current account deficit (CAD) of USD 464 million in the first eleven
months of the hscal year 2024 (11MFY 24) declining by 88% YoY compared to a deficit
of USD 3.8 billion in the corresponding period last year. Narrowing trade deficit was the
major contributor towards improving CAD as 11.3% increase in exports coupled with an
2.3% drop in imports led to a 17.0% contraction in the trade deficit. The county’s
external position improved with SBI”s foreign exchange reserves increasing to USD 9.4
bilhon as of June 2024 compared to USD 4.4 billion at the end of last fiscal year. This
was on account of flows from the IMFE, friendly countries and multilateral sources.

Headline inflation represented by CPl averaged 23.9% during the fiscal year 2024
compared to 29.0% last year. Inflation remained on the higher side as massive currency
depreciation in the prior periods led to surge in [ood and energy prices. The government
also hiked electricity base tanfT and gas prices to comply with the IMF conditions, which
led to further inflationary pressures. The SBP reduced the policy rate by 150bps to 20.5%
in the last monetary policy of the year held on June 10, 2024, The monetary policy noted
a significant decline in inflation, resulting in a substantially positive real interest rate,
which justifies initiating a monetary easing cvcle.

The country’s GDI* grew by 2.4% in the hnancial year 2023-24 as compared o -0.2%
last year. Agniculture grew by 6.3%., Services and industnial sector witnessed a paltry
increase of 1.2% each. Histonic high interest rates coupled with political uncertainty were
the major culprits behind the subdued industrial and services output. On the fiscal side.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

FBR tax collection increased by 29.6% in FY24 1o PKR 9,285 billion, missing the target
by a modest PKR 130 billion.

FUND PERFORMANCE

During the period under review, the fund generated a return of 20.79% as against ils
benchmark return of 10.10%.

The allocation of fund was towards Ijara Sukuk and Cash with the exposures standing at
58.6% and 30.3% respectively.

The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 stood at Rs. 12,298 million as compared
to Rs. 4,275 million as at June 30, 2023 registering an increase of 187.67%.

The Net Asset Val ue (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2024 was Rs. 104.0607 as compared
to opening NAV of Rs. 102.9884 per unit as at June 30, 2023 registering an increase of
Rs. 1.0723 per unit.

Economy & Market — Future Outlook

Pakistan GDP is expected to rebound to 3.5% in FY25 afier a disappointing performance
last year where the GDP increased by only 2.4%. The outlook for industrial output is
relatively optimistic with an expected growth of 4.0% compared to 1.2% last year.
Macroeconomic stability, stable currency and decline in interest rates will help revive the
industrial and service sector growth. Agriculture performance is likely to remain on the
lower side due to high base effect.

A new stalfl-level loan agreemenlt has been reached belween Pakistan and the
International Monetary Fund (IMF) under which the country will receive USD 7.0 billion
over 37 months. The final approval of the loan will be given by the IMF Executive
Board. Successtul continuation of the IMF program is a key positive as it will allow us to
tap [unding from bilateral and multilateral sources. However, our external position still
remains precarious due to debt outflows and our inability to raise funds through
international Eurobond or Sukuk. Thus, we would continue to run a sustainable current
account this year to stave off external concerns. We expect a CAD of USD 1.0 billion
(0.2% of GDP) in FY25 as policy of consolidation is likely to continue under the IMF
umbrella.

The USD PKR is expected to remain stable as the government is focusing on improving
current account deficit on the back of recovery in export and remittances. Entry into the
new IMF program will also increase visibility on the external funding. We expect
USD/PKR to close the fiscal year around PKR 311.

The inflation reading has started to come down due to base effect and relatively stable
currency. The headline inflation number in June 2024 clocked of 12.6% compared to a
high of 38.0% in May 2023. The core inflation also registered a significant slowdown,
clocking at 14.1% which is a low of 23 months. The inflation reading is expected to
decline to single digits in |HFY25. Keeping in view the inflationary trends, external and
fiscal position we expect interest rate to decline to 14-15% by June 25.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

For debt holders, we expect Money Market Funds to continue to seamlessly mirror policy
rates throughout the year. Investors with a mid to long term view can benefit from Bond
and Income Funds where higher duration will create opportunities for capital gains in the
wake of Interest rate outlook. We have added government bonds in Income Funds to
benefit from the expecied monetary easing in the near term.

Mutual Fund Industry Review

The Net Assets of the open-end mutual funds industry increased by about 64.6% during
FY24 to PKR 2,574 billion. Teotal money market funds grew by about 45.0% since June
2023. Within the money market sphere, conventional funds showed a growth of 33.0% to
PKR 629 billion while Islamic funds increased by 58.2% to PKR 679 billion. In addition,
the total fixed Income funds increased by about 104.7% since June 2023 to PKR 756
billion while Equity and related funds increased by 52.3% to PKR 255 billion.

In terms ol the segment share, Money Market funds were the leader with a share of
around 50.8%, followed by Income funds with 37.3% and Equity and Equity related
[unds having a share 0f 9.9% as at the end of June 30, 2024,

Mutual Fund Industry Outlook

Both Bonds and Equities are likely to do well in the next year on the back ol cut in
interest rates. During the year, significant interest of investors is already visible in
Income Funds while equity fund is likely to see inflows post new IMF agreement.
Relatively High interest rates during the period would encourage sustained flows in the
money market funds as they are ideal for investors with a short-term horizon and low risk
profile.

Our operations remained seamless and given our competitive edge in digital access and
online customer experience, we are prepared to gel benefits of the growing number of
investors available online.

MANAGEMENT COMPANY

On April 18, 2023, MCB Bank Limited (MCB), being the parent company of MCB-Aril
Habib Savings and Investments Limited, has acquired 21,664,167 (30.09%) shares of
MCB-Aril Habib Savings & Investment Limited (MCB-AH) from Aril Habib
Corporation Limited (AHCL). By virtue of this transaction MCB Bank Limited’s
shareholding in MCB-AH has increased [rom 36,956,768 (51.33%) shares to 58,620,935
(81.42%) and AHCL no longer holds any shares in MCB-AH.

Consequently, members of the Company in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM)
held on July 07, 2023 have resolved via special resolution that the name of the Company
be changed [rom MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited to MCB Investment
Management Limited and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has
approved the change in name on August 15, 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Fund is committed to implement the highest standards of corporate governance. The
Board comprises of eight (8) members including the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and
has a diverse mix of gender and knowledge. The Board consists of 1 female and 7 male
directors, categorized as follows:

e 4 Non — Executive Directors:
e 3 Independent Directors; and
= | Executive Director (CEQ).

The details of above are as under:

Sr. Name Status Mcmhcrs‘hip 111' other Board
MNo. Committees
1. Mr. Haroun Rashid Mon-Executive Director None
2. Mr. Shoaib Mumtaz MNon-Executive Director HR&ER* Committee
P .

3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Non-Executive Director HR%R., Lﬂn"_tmlttee

Audit Committee
4.  Mr. Manzar Mushtaqg Non-Executive Director  Audit Committee
5. Syec . Hayell, Meehul Independent Director Audit Committee (Chairman)

Hussam

6. Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Independent Director HRER* Committee (Chairman)
7.  Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Independent Director HR&R* Committee
8. zllh;h Khawaja Khatil Executive Director HR&R* Commuitiee

* HR&R stands for Human Resource and Remuneration
Management is continuing to comply with the provisions of best practices set out in the
code of corporate governance. The Fund remains committed to conduct business in line
with listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange, which clearly defined the role and
responsibilities of Board of Directors and Management.

The Board of Directors is pleased to report that:

a. The financial statements, present fairly the state of affairs. the results of operations,
cash flows and changes in equity;

b. Proper books of accounts of the fund have been maintained:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

@

. Appropriate accounting policies as stated in the notes to the financial stalements

have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan. provisions of’
the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment & Regulations) Rules, 2003,
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008,
requirements of the respective Trust Deeds and directives 1ssued by the Securities
& Exchange Commission ol Pakistan have been followed in the preparation of
[inancial slatements.;

The system of mternal control 18 sound in design and has been eflfectively
implemented and monitored with ongoing efforts to improve 1t further;

. There are no significant doubts upon the fund’s ability to continue as going

concern:

There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate
Grovernance, as detailed in the histing regulations;

The outstanding taxes, statutory charges and duties, 1if any, have been [ully
disclosed in the audited financial stalements;

The statement as to the value of investments of provident/gratuity and pension fund
15 not applicable on the Fund but applies to the Management Company: hence no
disclosure has been made in the Directors” ReporL.

As at June 30, 2024, the Company 18 in comphance with the requirements of
Directors” Training Program, as conlained in Regulation No. 20 of the Code:

The detailed pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2024 15 annexed;

A formal and effective mechamism i1s put i place for an annual evaluation of the
Board’s own performance, members of the Board and Commitiees of the Board;

. The details of attendance of Board of Directors meeting is disclosed in financial

statements. Below are the details of committee meetings held dunng the year ended
June 30, 2024:

I. Meeting of the Audit Committee.

During the year, four (4) meectings of the Audit Committee were held. The
attendance ol each participant i1s as lollows:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Number Number of meetings
Name of Persons D{ Attendance Leave
meetings z Attended
held required granted
" ~ Syed Savail Meckal 2 4 4
Hussain
2. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 4 4 4 0
3.  Mr. Manzar Mushtaq 4 4 4 0

2. Meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

During the year, two (2) meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee were held. The attendance of each participant 1s as follows

Number of meetings
Nuomber B
Name of Persons u!: Aﬁcnt!ancc Attended Leave
meetings required eranted
1 Mr. Fahd Kamal
) Chinoy 2 2 2 -
2. Mr. Shoaib Mumtaz 2 2 2 -
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 2 2 1
4 Ms. Mavra Adil
) Khan 2 2 1 1

n. The trades in the Units of the Fund were camed out during the year

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial

by Directors,
Officer.

Company Secretary, and Chief Internal Auditor of the Management Company and

their spouses and minor children.

S, Investment | Redemption ]'_'.Iw!::{:u.d
No Name Designation Distribution
{Number of Units)
Muhammad Chief Financial
1. | Asil Mechdi & Operaling 7.537.88 71.97 -

Rizvi . Officer

g || Al iened Company 55,358.42 52.064.44 -
Faisal Secretary

EXTERNALAUDITORS

The Fund’s external auditor’s M/s. ALF Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants have

retired after completion of audit for Financial Year ended June 30, 202

4. The Audit

Committee has recommended re-appointment of M/s. A.F Ferguson & Co. Chartered
Accountants as external auditors of the Fund for financial vear ending June 30, 2025 and
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

the Board has also endorsed the recommendation of the Audit Committee. Mis. ALK
Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants has also expressed their willingness to act as
the Fund’'s external auditors.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board is thankful to the Fund’s valued investors, the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan and the Trustees of the Fund for their continued cooperation and
support. The Directors also appreciate the efforts put in by the management team.

On behalf of Directors,
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Khawaja Khalil Shah Manzar Ml-lﬂh[-’ill.l .
Chief Executive Officer Director
September 25, 2024 September 25, 2024
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Fund Tyvpe and Category

Alhamra Islamic Income Fund 1s an Open-End Shaniah Compliant (Islamic) Income Scheme.

Fund Benchmark

The benchmark for ALHIIF is Six (6) months average deposits rates of three (3) A rated Scheduled Islamic
Banks or Islamic windows of Conventional Banks as selected by MUFAP.

Investment Objective

To generate superior risk adjusted returns by investing in short, medium and long-term Shariah Compliant
Fixed income instruments.

Investment Strategy

The Fund shall seek to provide the investors with a rate of return consistent with a broadly diversified
portfolio of long, medium and short term, high quality Shariah Compliant fixed income instruments.

Manager's Review

During the period under review, the fund generated a return of 20.79% as against its benchmark return of
10.10%. The fund was 3.3% in Government Backed Securities, 4.0% invested in Sukuks 58.6% in GoP Tjara
Subuk while remaining exposure was in Cash.

The Net Assets of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 stood at Rs. 12,298 million as compared to Rs. 4,193 million
as at June 30, 2023 registering a decrease of 193.3%. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30,
2024 was Rs. 104.0607 as compared to opening NAV of Rs. 1029884 per unit as at June 30, 2023 registering
an increase of Rs. 1.0723 per umit,

Asset Allocation as on June 30, 2024 (% of total assets)

Asset Allocation (Yeage of Total Assets) Jun-24
Cash 30.3%
Sukuks 4.0%
Government Backed / Guaranteed Securities 3.3%
GoP Ljara Sukuk SE.6%
Shariah Compliant Placement with Banks and DFIs 0.0%
Shariah Compliant Commercial Papers 0.0%
Others including Receivables 3.8%
TDR=s 0.0%
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Asset Quality as on June 30, 2024 (% of total assets)

AR

e Not Rated
3.8%
AR
24.4%
Government
Securities
61.9%

AAA
4.1%

Syed Mohammad Usama Igbal
Fund Manager
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

CENTRAL DEFOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAM LINGTED

Haad Office:
COC Hexre $9:-E. Wlock "B
SN HS: Main Shalvia-#-F bhia

Caracrs - TL400, Fakibtam

Tel (S22 117001500
Fax) 92-20) 6021 -3
WAL Wy DI D L Cormy

Emait infolodcpsk com

v @

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNTT HOLDERS
ALHAMRA ISLAMIC INCOME FUND

Report of the Trastee purssant to Regulution 410h) and clanse § of Schedule V of Ulie Mot
Banking Finance Companies nnd Notlfied Entiries Regulatinng, 2008

We Central Depsitory Cowspany of Paliston Limited, being the Trusies of Alhnmes Iskamic
Incoms Fund (he Fund) nre of the apizion that MOH Investment Matis gement Limeed heing
the Mamagement Compny of the Fand bas o all matcrial respevis maneged the Fand ‘durmg
the vesr ended June 20, 2024 in aocoidencs with ihe perovisions of the fodloving:

i Limitalbons impaned an the lvestment poseers of the Managermices C mrpary under the
consiliive documens of the Fund:

() The pricimg, issuntice und rodompelon of undty sre crrlsd out i accordanie with the
requirements of the constinat] ve ducumonts of the Fund;

(=) Whe managemen foo, fiee pavohle o Comutiss lon snd other exparies pudd from the Plnd
ituring the perind are in escardenee with the dpphcabls reguiatory framework: amd

(iv)  The Non-Hanking Firanee Compnzics (Extablishment rad Megulatious) Rules, 1003, (he
Non-Banking Pinance Conlpanies and Notified Entities Repubminm, 2008 and the
constitulive documents of the Fund

For the atiention of unit holders, during on onsile inspoction af the Manapoines Cosipany, the
Secunitios and Fxvelunge Commission of Pakistan (SECP) identified certain maiters reloted 1o
ihe charging und allocation of selhinge and mar¥eting cxpenses 10 the Fumd Accordibgly, the
Manrgemens Company, following the guidnnce and interprotation providsd by the SECP, will
ootpetsnie to the entiiled ini holdery

il
Radin Akber }
Chiel Execurive Offlce
Central Depository Company of Pakistes Limitad

Karmchi: Sepember 10, 3024
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

Karachi: September 23, 2024

REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISORY BOARD

Alhamdulillah, We the Shariah Advisery Board of the Fund, are [ssuing this report in acoordance with the
Offering document of Alhamra islamic Income Fund (the Fund). The scope of the report is to express an
opinion on the Shariah compliance of the Fund’s activitics.

It is the responsibility of M/s MCB Investment Managemont Limited, the management company of the fund, to
establish and maintain a system of internal controls to ensure compliance with Shariah puidelines. Our
respongibility is to express an opinion, based on our review of the representation made by the mamigement,
to the extent whiere such compliance can be objectively verified

A review 15 limited primarly to inguire to the Management Company's personnel and review of varlous
documents prepared by the management company @ comply with prescnbed criterias In the light of the
above, we hereby certify that:

=  We have reviewed and approved the modes of Investment of Alhamra |slamic Ihwome Fund
LALHIIF) in the light of the Shariah guidelines,

+«  All the provisions of the scheme and investments made on acoount of ALHIIF by Management
Company are Shariah Compliant and in accordance with the criteria established.

o On the basis of information provided by the Managemenr Company, all the operations of ALHUF
for the year eoded June 30, 2024 have been In compliance with Shariah principles.

May Allah bless us with Tawfeeq to accomplish these cherished tasks, make us successful in this world and in
the hereaftor, J.(pl] forgive our mistales

7 Jﬂ-‘ -‘

f~— 1Y) =
' l._l E_d I'f_,..-
DOr Muhammad Zubair Usmani Dr Ejar Ahmed Samadani
{Shariah Advisor) [Shariah Advisor)

For and on behall of Shariah Advisory Board
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SHARIAH COMPLIANCE AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

UH Hassan Naeem & Co.

Chartersd Accouniants

&0 Frigremne C it
TF i - T i)
AT, P min

Pore 1 JEII2AGY-D
Wil e, Lt S

independent Assurance Report on Compliance with the Shariah Governance Regulstions, 2023

To the unit holders of Alhame=z Istemic Income Fund (the Fund)

L Iintreduction

We hove undertaken a reasona ble sssurance engagement that the Sacusitied and Exchangs Commitsion
of Pakistan (SECF] has required in terms of its Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023 (the Regulations)
External Shariah Acdit of Alhamra islamic Income Fand (the Fund) for assessing comgliance of the Fund's
firanclal a rrangemernts, contracts, and transactions having Shariah mplleations with Sharish pringlples far
the year endead lune 30, 2074, This ersagement was condected by a multidiecipinary team incheding
essurance practitoners and independant Shariah schalar(s),

L. Applicable Criteria

The criteria for the ssumnce engapement, against which the underlying sublect mates (Hnancial
armngements, contracts, and transactions having Shariah |mplications for the year snded June 30, 2024)
iz xsessad, comprise the Shariah principies =nd rules as definad in the Repulstions and reproduced as
urier

! Legal and reguidtony framework administaned by the Comymission:

[ Shariah sandards issued by the Accounting and Audiing Organization for Blams Fhancisd
Inssitutiond (AADIF), as notified by Commilssion;

] Istamic Fnancal Accounting Stendards, dewelgped by the Institute of Chartsred Accountants of
Pakisran, 3 notifed by the Commissan;

. Guidsnce and recommendations of the Sharish advisory commities, 83 notified by Commission
and

v, Approvals, rulings or pronouncements of the Sharlah supervisory boand or the Shariah advisor of
the islamic financial institution, in line with (I} 1o {iv| sbove

The above criteéna went evaluated for their implications an the: fimancal stetements of the Fund for the
year ended June 30, 2024, which are afnsned

3. Management's Responsibility for Shariah Compliance

Managament is resporsible 1o ansure that the financia! arrangaments, contracts, and transactons havine
Sharish implications, entered (mo by the Fund with &s customers, other financial institutions, ond
siakeholders, and related policies and procedures, are, In subsance and in their legal Torm, n compliance
with the regulrements of Shadlah rules and prinelples. The management B alis redponslble far the deslgn,
impiementation, and maimenance of appropriate |nternal control procedures with respect to such
compilance and maintzri nee of relevant accounting records

& rar=fae of | T mtaont o Rty o ERpORES Q0PN D SN IR TH

Lahire OFfian. | 99.4, Pur) lrsa, Linos 94000 (Paipar; g m
ke raaaed Oftfice \Adeer Loswrr Lmnori, Pk M 10008 P iy Rond. Biue Avse, Basatiod Padiiar FORUM OF FIRM=
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SHARIAH COMPLIANCE AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

UH Hassan Naeem & Co.

Chartersd Accountanis

4. Our independence and Quality Cantrol

Ve have complied with the independence and cther ethical reguirsments of the Code of Ethics for
Chartered Accountanis ksued by the institute of Chartersd Accountants of Pakistan, which |s founded on
fundamental principles of Integrity, objsctivity, profesional competence and dus care, corfidemtiality, and
professional behavior,

The firm apples International Standard on Quality Contral 1 *Qustity Contral for Flrms That Badoem Audits
and Reviews of Historkcsd Fimancial information, And Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements”
and accordingly malntaing o comprahensive sstam of quality control, Including docurmemed palicies and
procedurss regarding complisnce with ethiczl requiremants, professional standards, and spplicable legsl
and regulatory requiretmants

5. Our Responafbliity and Summary of the Werk Perfarmed

Crur responsibility in connectian with this engagemsnt |y to express an opinion on the cemplience of the
Fund's Rivancial srrang=ments, contracts, and trinsackons having Shariah Implications with Sharlsh
principles, i all materia! respects, for the year ended lune 30, 2024, based on the eddencs we have
obtained. We conducted our reasonable assurance engagement in sccordance with Internations! Standard
an Assyrance Engagements 3000, ‘Aszurance Engapemants ather than audis of eviess of historic!
financial staternents’, laued by the Intermational Audlting and Adsurance Standards Boprd,

That stancard requires that we plan and perfoern this sngagement ta abtaln reasonable assurence about
whethar the compliance ofthe Fund’s Brancist armngements. contracts, and transsctions having Shariah
Iimplicesion with Shariah principles (s frea from meterial missatement

Thz procedires seiected by v for the enzapemant depended an owr [udgment, including the 2ssemmant
of the risks of materiol non-complisnce with the Sharlsh principles. In making thoses risk assassments, we
considerad and tested the intermsl control retevant to the Fund's comaBsnce with the Sharizh principtes
i arder 10 design procedures that are sppeopriste In the cicumstances, but not for the purpose of
EXprassing an opinion on the oflectivencss of the Fund’s intermal ontrol We have designed and
pertormed necessary verificabion procedures on varows finencisl arangemsnts, contracts, and
tranzactions having Shariah implictions and rzlated policles and procedures bassd on [ubdgmental and
SyREMatic samples with rogard (o the compliance of Shariah peinciples |criteris specifiad bn para 2 abovel

We bafieve that the evidence we have obtainéd throueh performing our procedures was sufficient =nd
appropriate to provide a bask for our apinlon

7. Conclusion

fased on our ressoneble assurance engagsmont, we report thal In olr opinkan, Fund's financial
TANRSMENtS, Coniracs, and transctions for the year ended June 30, 2024 aro in comglinnce with the
Shariah principles (criteria specified 1h pars 2 shovet, In all material negpects.

Wil Howar Alade. /. (
UHY Hassan Naeern & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Engagemeant Partner: Arslan Ahmed
Dared: Saptembar 27, 2024

At 5 BT ekl i St ol il sediu-Wog e i o WO ey
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

-

pwc AFFERGUSON&CO,

INDEFENDENT AUNTOR'S REPORT
Ta the Unit holders of Alhamra Islambe Income Fand
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemenis
Opinion

W have padited the feanclal statements of Alhams Idamic Income Fund (the Fand), which comprise the
statement of pssels and Babflities ms a1 Jung 0, 2024, amd the income statement, statement of
compreh engdve ineome, statement of movement in gnit bolders” fond and eash flow statement for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, inchiding material accounting policy information,

I otir orplabon, the pecampanying financial satements give o troe nnd flr viow of the finaselal position of
the Fond as at June 30, 2024, and of its financhl performance and itz cash fiows for the year then ended in
seeordance with the accounting and reporting stondards sz applicable [n Pakistan.

Hasis for Oplnion

Wi conducted our gudit in aceopdancs with International Standards on Auditing (1SA2) as applicable in
Paldstan. Our responsibitities under thoss standamds are farther desoribed in the Auditors Responstbifities
Sor the Audit of the Finaoneial Siefements section of our mport. We are independent of the Fund in
acoonbanpe with the Imernational Ethics Standards Board for Acconntants’ Code of Fthics for Professiona/
Aceourtinis as adopted by the Institiute of Charterod Accountanis of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfiled our ather ethicl responnibilities i accardance with the Code. We bolicve that the audit evidense
wit have obixined is suffiolent and appropriate to provide a hasts for our oplnlon.

Key Audit Matters

Koy oudit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, wers of most significance in our
aurit of the financial statements of the carrent perdod. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the finencial Matements an a whole, sad in forming our opinion thercon, apd we do not provids a
separite opinion on thse mattem

Following &= the key audit mattor:

1 Net Asset Valoe (NAV)
[Refer notes 5 and 6 1o the Gnancial
HE L ]

Unlemepy with bunky and Investmpnts copstitnle Onur st provedures smengst others meluded e Sollwing: |
the mast significant eomponents of the prt amet o Obtained independeist confirmations for verifying the |

value. Halanows with hanks of the Fusd s m kit af the invenmim porthitlo and bolapess with
Jume 30, souq sgEregeied o R 5?4*&43 ;:uh::;Jnﬂa,n,;nrqa::lm;lwhhmm
milon and  lovestments amounied b and recorda of the Fond, Whers such confirmafions wers
8.155.182 million. ot avnilshie, slernate aidit procedures were performed;
The exletenss of balanoes with banks and the o Ra-parformed valiation to asimes thit nvestimants s
exlstrnee anid waluathon of fmvestmels } i

for the on oI NAV ol the Pund mo skl oot et g T edalogy specifod (n the

Juns 30, 2024 wia considered o high ek aea)
winil thereforn we eonuldernd this s o bey andit * Obtained bank reconciliation statoments snd fested

re¢onciling (e on & e hask

.m i

A E. FERGUSON & 00, Chertered Acomundeiis, @ member i of the P notesrk
Stote Life Baildimg No. 1-C, 1L (hundriger Road, PO Bar 4706, Kerochi-zpooo, Polbston
Tal: =p2 fou) peestois-ifgaedrri-5 Pa sgu (20) gaqigoey/saer B agadao; <unm e som/plk

SHARATHI «LAHORE » 254 MABAD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

pwe AFFERGUSON&CO.

Other Matter

The Anancial statements of the Fand for the vear ended June 30, 3043 were andited by another firm of
Chartered Accountants who had expressed an snmodified opinfon thereon vide there report dated
September 20, Dodq.

Oiher Information

Mlanageinent in redpossible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
meludad in the Annual Report, bul does not inchude the financial statements and our suditor’s repon
thereon.

Or aplrdon on the financlal stotements does not cover the other information end we do not exproms any
form of assurance conclusion therson.

In connection with our audit of the financinl statements, cor esponsihility b to read the other information
and, In doing eo, consider whether the other Information s materlally Inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the sudit or otherwise appesrs to be materially misstated 1, based
i the work we have pesformed, we conelads that there (s material mlsatstement of this other Information,
we are reguired to repert that fact. We have nothing to report in this regand.

Responsihilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Management Company for
the Financial Stslements

Management i rouponiible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statemoents in
soeordance with secounting and reporting standards oy applicable in Pakiston, and for such intemal control
& mamigiensent determines b neceasery to enable the preparution of financial matements that uee froe from
materinl misstatement, whether due to fmoed or emor,

In prepanng the financial statements, masagement is responsible for sssessing the Fund's ability to
continue & b gobng concern, disclosing, aa applicabls, matior related to going coneern and uing the going
concern basis of secounting unless munagement either intends to liguidate the Pand or to cease operstions,
or hans no roalistio alternative but 1o do so,

floard of direcion of the Management Company is revponsible for ovemeeing the Fund's financial reporting
Prooess,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements

Our abijectives are to obiain rensonable assurance shout whether the financial statements a5 a whole are
froe from muterial mistaioment, wheiher due to froud or error, and to losie in suditer’s mport thel
inclades our oplalon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assuranee, bist s not n guarantes that an sudiy
enndueted in necordance with 15As m applisable in Paldstin will slways detect o material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from frand or error and are considered material i, individually or
in the aggregnte, they could reasenably be expected to influence the voonomic decisions of usen talon on
the basis of these finonelil statements.

A part of an sudit in sceordance with 15As s3 applicable in Pakistan, we exercise profesdonal jodgment
aniel maintain professional skepticism throughoul the sudit, We alse:

*  [ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the finsnclal statements, whiether due (o fraud
or error, design and perform sudit procedures responsive to those risks, nnd obtain sudit evidence that
ia aufficiont and appropriste o provide @ hasks for mir opinios. The risk of not detecting & material
misstatement resalting from fraod ks higher than for one resulting from error, a5 fradd sy lolve
collusion; forpory, intentional cmissona, minrepresentutions, or thy overnde of intornal control

A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

- “
pwc AFFERGUSON&CO.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant (o the andit in order to design surdit procedures
thit afe apipsopiiate in the cdfcamatances, but hot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund's internal contral,

*  Ewvaloats the appropristences of sccounting policies used and the reasonableness of sccounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conglude on the sppropriatensss of management's use of the going concern basis of aocounting and,
hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a moferin] uncertainty exists related to events or
conditionn that may cast significant doubt on the Fand's ability to continue an @ going coneern, 11 we
conclude that o material uncestainty exicts, we are required o draw sttention in oor auditer’s report to
the related disclosuros in the financinl statements or, ifsch disclosuros are inadegquate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclunlons are based on the nudit evidence obtainad up to the date of our auditor's rFeport.
However, future rronts or conditions may canss the Fund to cease to continne as 0 going concern.

¢  Evaluate the overall presentation, strscture and content of the finoncial stetements, incloding the
disclosured, and whather the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
& manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communleate with boand of directors of the Management Company regarding, among other matter,
the planned scope and timing of the aodit ond significant godit fisdings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal comtrol that we identify during our aodit.

We also provide boand of directors of the Management Company with a statement that we hove complied
with relevant ethical requirmments mganding independence, and W communicate with them afl
relationdhips and other matiers that may ressonsbly be thoaght to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards,

Fram the moatters communicated with board of directors of the Management Company, we determine those
matters it were of most gignificance in the sadit of the financial statements of the earmmt perod end ae
therefore the key audit matters, We deseribe these matters in our suditor's report unleas low o regulation
precindes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely sare ciroumstanees, we determing that
a matter should not be communicaled in our report becanse the sdverse comequences of daing o would
ronsonshly be expected to ontwelgh the puhblic interest bennfits of such communiostion,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremenis

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion the financial statements have been prepared in ol
material reapects in accordanen with the relevant provialona of the Mon-Banking Finance Compandes nnd
Rotified Entities Regulations, 2008,

The engugement partret on the sudit resulting in this independent suditor's report is Junaid Mesia

k“ﬁll:n“-
A.F.F n & Co.

Chartered Accountania

Karschi

Dated: Octnbier 4, 2004

UDIN: ARIDZ4106118cEMTHY a9
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
Note June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
—— (Rupees in "000°) ——

ASSETS
Balances with banks 5 3,746,343 1,539,887
Investments 6 8,155,182 2178,742
Advance against IPO subscription of Corporate sukuk cerlificates - 397,000
Profit receivables T 432,090 165,903
Advances, deposils, prepayments and other receivables 8 41,244 20570
Total assets 12,374,859 4,302,102
LIABILITIES
Payable to MCB Investment Management Limited - Management Company 9 20,640 6,190
Payable lo Central Deposilory Company of Pakislan Limited - Trustze 10 846 298
Payable o the Securilies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 749 1,171
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 24.1: 19,318
Total liabilities 76,426 26,977
NET ASSETS 12,298 433 4,275,125
Unit holders’ fund (as per statement attached) 12,298 433 4275125
Contingencies and commitments 13

{Number of units) ——
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 118,185,188 41,510,753

(Rupees)

NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 104.0607 102.9884

The annexed notes from 1 1o 28 lorm an integral part of these financial statements.

P,
P i A

-

For MCB Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)

=

4

[ )

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

T ay

Director
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INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

INCOME

Profit on savings accounis with banks

Income from government securities and commercial papers

Income from Comporate sukuk cerificates

Income an lerm deposils receipts

MNet realized Loss on sale of investments

Other income

Met unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on re-maasurement of investments
classified as Tinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss'

EXPEMNSES

Remuneration of MCB Investment Management Limited - Management Company
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company

Allocated expenses

Selling and markefing expenses

Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trusteo
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trusiee

Fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Auditors' remuneration

Leqgal and professional charges

Brokerage and settioment charges

Bank charges

Fees and subscription

Sharah advisory fee

Printing and related costs

Total expanses

Het income for the year before taxation
Taxation

Net income for the year after taxation
Earnings per unit

Allocation of net income for the year

Met income for the year afier iaceation

Income aiready paid on units redeemed
Accounting income available for distribution

- Relafing to capital gains
- Exciuding capital gains

The annexed notes from 1 o 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mote For the year endoed
June 30, Juna 30,
2024 2023
— (Rupees in "0007) —
455 574 328,841
891,495 171.464
307,936 356,049
12, 440 71.643
{10,041) {10,185)
273 -
6.5 46,803 {15,382)
1,704 480 901,830
9.1 61,543 32.736
9.2 & 001 4 256
9.3 7.685 5,859
0.4 35,055 5,648
10.1 6,261 4,304
10.2 814 571
111 6,261 1,171
14 1,062 820
131 174
[ 349
234 531
563 538
480 710
34 40
128,852 57,705
1,575,628 844 035
16 - -
1,575,628 B44 035
413
1,575,628 844 035
(860,802} (£42,631)
714,736 401,204
22,663 -
692,073 401,204
714,736 401,204

For MCB Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)

o’ A

[ )

&

P,
P i A

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Director
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

For the year ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
—— [(Rupees in "000") —
Met income for the year after taxation 1,575,628 B44 035
Cther comprehensive income for the year - =
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,575 628 A44 035

The annexed noles from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial sialements.

For MCB Investment Management Limited
(Management Company)

o
- .--..___..-' . o ] A
P M Muﬁén%mﬁin‘v—

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Met assets al the beginning of the year

Issuance of 287 917 302 unis (2023 153,633 867 umis)

- Cap#al value (at ex-net assat value per unit at the

begmnng of the year)
- Element of incoma

Tolzal proceeds on issuance of units

Redemption of 211,242 867 units (2023; 158,543,882 units)

- Cap#al value (at ax-net assat value per unit 2t the
begmnng of the year)
- Blement of loss

Tolal payments on redemption of units
Total comprehensve income for the year
Distribution for the year ended June 30, 2024
i@ Rs. 20235 per unit (dedared on June 22, 2024)
Refund of capital dunng the year
Dimtribution bor the yesr ended June 30, 2023
i@ As. 142742 per unit (declsred on June 16, 2023)

Refund of capital for the year
Met income for the year less distribution

Met assets al the end of the year

Accounting income svailable for distribution
- Relating to capHsl gans
- Excluding capital gains
Distnbution made durnng the year
Undistributed income carried fomnard
Undistributed income camried forward
- Realised income
- Uinreakised income / (loss)

Met asset value per unit at the beginning of the year
Met assel value per unit at the end of the year

Year ended Juns M, M4 Year ended June 30, 2023
Undistributs : Undistributs
Capital value |~ Tetal Capital value |~ Total
[Rupees in D00}
4,226,347 A8TTE 4,275,125 4,747 853 35522 4783375
20,552 135 - 20652 135 | | 156095774 - 15,685 774
3,122,906 - 2,122,006 840,708 = 840,700
32,775,041 - FZTI5.041 16,536,483 - 16.536.483
{21,755,560) - | {21.755560)| | 16238263 - 16,238,263
(1,832,321)| (860882) (2603.213) | (33,143532)] (442.831)] (39,586 363)|
(23 587.881) (BG0.BRZ) (24.448,773) (16,005269) (WZB31) (17,48,100)
- | LEIGEIE| 1,5/5625 ] - T Bix1A RN
= (B55905)  (B55925) 3 = =
(1,.222.663) - (1,222 663) < . _
= 3 3 - [387.048)|  (387.04E)
= = = {152 720) E {152 720)
(1.222,663) DI18,703 (302 S (152.720) 456,087 303,367
12190844 107,589 12203433 4,226,347 48778 4375125
64,760 37,763
15,982} 2.241)
48,778 35522
22663 =
BU2 (73 401,204
(B55,925) [(347.948)
107 5849 48,778
0,786 64,760
il __(15882)
107,569 4B.778
{Rupees) (Rupees)
102 9884 102 1635
1040607 1029864

The annexoed notes from 1 o 28 form-an integral part of these financial siatomonts.

For MCB Investment Management Limited

7 A

=

"y

'_____.:_-:.-;.af_’;.;’fxi"?

Chief Executive Officer

(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Met income for the year before taxation

Adjustments for:

Met unrealised (apprecation) / diminution on re-measurement of investments
classified as "financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’

(Increase) / decrease in assets

Investments - net

Profit receivables

Advance against IPO subscripion of Corporaie sukuk certificales
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase [ (decrease) in liability

Payablo to MCB Investiment Management Limited - Management Company
Payablo to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limifed - Truslec
Payablo to the Securifics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Payable against purchase of invesimenis

Accrued expenses and other kabiliies

Mot cash (used in) / generated from oporating sctivities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts against issuance and conversion of units - net of refund of capital
Payments against redemplion and conversion of units

Dividend paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Mot increasze |/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the yoar
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash squivalents at the ond of the yoar

The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial siatements.

Note Far the yoar andod
Juna 30, June 30,
2024 2023
—— (Rupees in 000"} —
1.575,628 844,035
6.5 (46,803) 15,582
1,528,825 860,017
(2.929,637) 1,028,508
(266,187) {83,696)
397,000 {20,000}
(20,674) {288)
(2,819.498) 924 724
14 450 929
548 {121)
(422) (335)
- {741,576)
34 873 {6.595)
49 449 {747 658)
{4,241, 224) 1.036,543
31,552,378 16,383,763
(24.448,773) (17,348,100
{555,9‘25}_ {387 ,04B)
6,447 680 {1.352 285)
2 206456 {315,742}
1,539,887 1.855629
5 3.746.343 1.539 887

For MCB Investment Management Limited

(Management Company)

T
A '

P,
P i A

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

T ay

Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

-

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Alhamra slamic Income Fund (the Fund) was established through a Trust Deed executed betweon MCB-Arf Habib
Savings and Investments Limited (now: MCB Investment Management Limited), as the Management Company and
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as Trusteo. The draft Trust Deed of the Fund was approved
by the Socuriies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) wide its-letter dated January 25, 2011 consoquent to
which Trust Deed was cxecuted on March 07, 2011 in accordance with the Assct Managemenit Companies Rules,
18495 (AMC Rules) repealed by the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003
{NBFC Rules). Dunng the year ended Juns 30, 2021, the Trust Act, 1882 was repecaled dug to promulgation of
Provisional Trust Act namely "Sindh Trusts Act, 20217 (the Sindh Trust Acl) as empowered under the Eightesnth
Amendment to the Constitution of Pakistan. The Fund was registered under the Sindh Trost Act on August 13, 2021.

In April 2023, MCB Bank Limited acguired the entire shareholding of Arif Habib Corporation Limited (AHCL) in MCB
Anf Habib Savings and Investments Limited after which the shareholding of MCB Bank Limiled has increased from
51.33% to 81.42% in the Management Company and AHCL no longer holds any shares in the Management Company.
Consequently, members of the Management Company in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) held on July 7,
2023 resolved via spedal resolution that the name of the Management Company be changed from MCB Anf Habib
Savings and Investments Limited to MCB Investment Management Limited.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Managemant Company under the Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishiment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) through a cerificale of
registration issued by the SECP. The registered office of the Management Company is situated at 2nd Floor, Adamjce
House, LI Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan.

The Fund iz an open-end collective investment scheme and i listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The
principal objective of the Fund is to seek to generate supenor risk adjusted returms by investing in short, medium and
fong-term Shariah Compliant fixed income instruments. The units of the Fund ware iniially offered for public
subscription at a par value of Rs 100 per unil Thereafter, the units are being offered for public subscripbion on a
continuous basis. The units of the Fund are transferable and can also be redeemed by surmendering them to the Fund.
The Fund has been categonsed as a "Shariah Compliant islamic Income scheme” by the Boand of Directors of tha
Management Company in accordance with the requirements of Circular 7 of 2009 dated March &, 2009 issued by the
SECP.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited {(PACRA) has assigned an assel manager rating of "AM1" dated Oclober
06, 2023 (2023: "AM1" dated October 6, 2022) to the Management Company and AA-[T) as stabiity rating dated
September 8, 2023 (2023: "AA-(T)" dated March 09, 2023) to the Fund. The rating reflects the Management Company's
experienced management team, structured imvestment process and sound quality of systems and processes.

The tithe to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the
Trustes of the Fund.
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The transactions undertaken by the Fund in accordance with the process preschibed under the Shariah guidelines
izsued by the Shanah Advisor are accounted for on substance rather than the form prescribod by the aforementioned
guidelines, This practice = being followed to comply with the requirements of the accounting and reporting standands
as applicable in Pakiistan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and repording standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting siandards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Accounting Standards) =ssued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board (1ASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, along with part VIIIA of the repesled
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- Mon-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the Non-

Banking Finance Companies and Notiied Enfiies Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and the
requirements of the Trust Deed.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Where provisions of and direclives issued under lhe Companies Acl, 2017, parl VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of lhe Trusl Deed differ from the
requirements of IFRS Accounting Standards, the provisions of and direclives issued under the Companies Acl, 2017,
part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements
of the Trust Deed have been lollowed.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are effective
in the current year

There are certain amendmenls lo the published accounting and reporling standards that are mandatory for the Fund's
annual accounting penod beginning on July 1, 2023. However, these are nol considered 1o be relevant or did nol have
any maleral effect on the Fund's financial slalements and have, therefore, nol been disclosed in these financial
stalements excepl thal during the year cerdain amendments lo IAS 1 ‘Presenlation of Financial Stalements’ have
become applicable (o the Fund which reguire enlities lo disclose their malernal accounting policy information rather
than lheir significanl accounting policies. These amendments to IAS 1 have been introduced 1o help enlities improve
accounling palicy disclosures so thal they provide more useful informalion o inveslors and other primary users of the
linancial slatemenls. These amendments have been incomporated in hese financial statements with the primary
impact that the maleral accounting policy informalion has been disclosed rather than the significant accounting

policies.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet
effective

There are cerlain new slandards and amendments o the published sccounting and reporting slandards thal will be
applicable 1o the Fund for ils annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2024 However, these are nol considered 1o
be relevanl or did nol have any malerial effect on the Fund's financial stalements excepl for:

- The new slandard - IFRS 18 Presenlation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (IFRS 18) (published in April
2024) with applicability date of January 1, 2027 by [ASBE. IFRS 18 when adopted and applicable shall impact the
presentaiion of Tncome Stalement’ with cerain additional disclosures in the inancial siatements; and

- Amendmenls lo IFRS 9 Financial Instruments' which clanfy the dale of recognition and derecognilion of a
financial assel or financial liabilily including selllement of liabilities through banking instrumenls and channels
including electronic transfers. The amendment when applied may impacl the timing of recognilion and
dereconition of financial labililies.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial stalemenls in conformity with the accounling and repording slandards requires the
management lo make estimales, judgmenls and assumplions thal affect the reporded amounts of assels, labilities,
income and expenses._ || aiso requires the managemen! lo exercise judgmenl in the application of the Company's
accounting policies. The eslimates and associaled assumplions are based on hislonical experience and varous other
factors, including expectation of fulure events, that are believed o be reasonable under the circumstances, the resulls
of which form the basis of making judgments aboul carmying value of assets and liabilities. These eslimales and
assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions lo accounting estimales are recognised in the year in
which the esfimale is revised il the revision alfects only thal year, or in the year of revision and fulure years il the
revision allects both the current and fulure years.

The eslimates and judgements thal have a significanl efiect on the financial slatements of the Fund relale o
classificalion and valuation of financial assels (noles 4.2 and ).

Accounting convention

These financial slalemenls have been prepared under the hislorcal cost convention excepl for investmenls which
have been classilied as ‘al fair value through profil or loss’ and are measured al fair values.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

421

4.2.21

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in these financial stalements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Fund operates. These financial staiements are presenfed in Pakistani Rupees, which i= the Fund's
functional and presentation cummency.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The materal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set oul below. These
policies have been applied consistently o all the years presented, unless othenwise staled.

Cash and cash equivalents

These comprise balances with banks in savings and current accounts and other short-term highly liguid investiments
with original maturities of three months or less.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assels are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
These are inilially recognised al fair value plus transaction costs excepl for financial assels camied ‘al fair value
through profit or loss'. Financial assets carried ‘al fair value thmugh profit or loss® are nitially recognised at fair value
and transaction costs are recognised in the Income Statement.

Ciassification and subseguent measurement
Debt instruments
IFRS 9 has provided a criteria for debt securities whereby these debt securnities are either classified as:

- at amortised cost
- at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and
at fair value through profit or less "(FVPL)"

based on the business model of the entity.

However, IFRS 9 also provides an option whereby securities managed as a portfolio or group of assets and whose
performance is measured on-a fair value basis, to be recognized at FVIPL. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value
information and uses that information o assess the assets’ pedormance and to make decisions. Therefore the
management considers its investment in debt secunties as being managed as a group of assets and hence has

Impairment

The fund assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credil losses (ECL) associated with its financial assets

{other than debt instruments) camed at amortized cost and FVOCL The fund recognises loss aflowances for such

Iosses af each reporiing date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

- an unbizsed and probability weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

- the time value of money; and

- reasonable and supportable information that i available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Fund considers that a financial asset is in default when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within
90 days of when they fall due. Further, financial assets are written off by the Fund, in whole or part, when it has
exhausted all pracfical recovery efforis and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Impairment loss on debt securities

Provision for non-performing debi securities is made on the basis of time-based crilenia as prescribed by the SECP
and based on management's assessment made in line with its provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors
of the Management Company in accordance with the guidelines issued by the SECP. Impaiment losses recognised
on debt securities can be reversed through the Income Statement.

As allowed by the SECP, the Management Company may make provision against debt securities over and above the
minimum provision requirement prescribed by the SECP, considering the specific credit and financial condition of the
debt security issuer and in accordance with the provisioning policy duly approved by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. The provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors has been placed on the
Management Company’s website as required under the SECP's circular.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

4.7

Regular way contracis

All reguiar way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date ie. the date on which the
Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases | sales of assets reguire delivery of securities
within two days from the transaction date as per the stock exchange regulabons.

Derecognition

Financial assels are derecognised when the nghts to receve cash flows from the financial assets have sxpired or
have been transferred and the Fund has fransferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of financial assets is aken o the Income Statement.

Financial liabilities

Classification and subseguent measurement

Financial labilities are recogmised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost

Derecognition
A financial kability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of financial liabilities is taken fo the Income Statement.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilies are offset and the net amount is reported in the ‘Statement of Assets and
Liabifities' when there s a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention fo settie
on a net basis, or to realise the assels and seitle the libilies simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic bensfits will be reguired to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regulary reviewed and adjusted fo reflect the cument
best esiimate.

Net asset value per unit

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the Statement of Assels and Liabilities is calculated by dividing
the net assels of the Fund by the number of units in circulation at the year end.

Issuance and redemplion of units

Uinits issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications received by
the Management Company / distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the Net Asset
Value (MAV) per unit as at the close of the business day, plus the allowable sales load, provision of any duties and
charges and provision for transaction costs, if applicable. The sales load is payable o the Managemeni Company /
distributors.

Units redeemed are recorded st the redemption price prevaleni aon the date on which the Management Company /
distributors receive redemption applications during business hours on that date. The redemption price represents the
NAV as on the close of the business day, less any dulies, taxes, charges on redemption and any provision for
fran=saction costs, if applicable.

Distributions to unit holders

Distribution to the unit holders are recognised upon declaration and approval by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. Based on the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented by
the SECP, distribution for the year also includes portion of income already paid on units redeemed during the year.

Distributions declared subsequent fo the year end reporting date are considersd as non-adjusting events and are

recognised in the financial statements of the year in which such distributions are declared and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Management Company.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units
redeemed

Element of income represents the difference between Met Asset Value (NAV) per unit on the issuance or redemption
date, as the case may be, of units and the NAV per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further,
the element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken o
unit holders' fund. However, fo maintain the same ex-dividend MAV of all units outstanding on the accounting date,
net element of income contributed on issue of units tving in unit holders® fund is refunded on units in the same
proportion as dividend bears fo accounting income available for distribution.

Revenue recognition

- Gainz | (losses) ansing on sale of investiments are included in the Income Staiement, on the date when the
transaction takes place;

- Unrealised appreciation / (diminufion ) arsing on re-measurement of investments ciassified as financial assets ‘at
fair vahue through profit or loss’ are included in the Income Statement in the period in which they arnise;

- Income on sukuk certificates and government secuniies is recognised on a ime proporbonate basis using the
effective yield method, except for the securities which are classified as Non-Performing Asset under Circular No.
33 of 2012 issued by the SECP for which the profits are recorded on cash basis; and

- Profit on balances with banks is recognised on an accrual basis,
Expenses

All expenses chamgeable to the Fund including remuneration of the Managemeni Company and Trustee and fee to the
SECP are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.

Taxation
Current

Provision for cument taxation = based on taxable income at the cument rates of taxes after taking into account tax
credits and rebates, if any. The charge for curment tax is calculated using the prevailing tax rales.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences anising
from differences between the camying amount of assets and lhiabilities in the financial siafemenis and the
commesponding tax bases used in the compuiation of the taxable profit

The defermed tax lisbilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and defemed tax assets are
recognised to the exient that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utiiised. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on enacted tax rates.

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of its accounfing income for the year, as
reduced by capital gains. whether realised or unrealised, is distributed amongst the unit holders. Furthermore, for the
purpose of determining distribution of at least 90 percent of the accounting income, the income distributed through
bonus units shall not be taken o account

The Fund is atso exempt from the provisions of secfion 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second
Schedule fo the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Earnings per unil

Eamings per unit is calculated by dividing the net income for the year afier taxabion of the Fund by the weighted
average number of units outstanding duning the year.

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as, in the opinion of the management, the determination of
cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units for calculating EPU is not practicable.
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Foreign currency transiation

Transactions denominated in foreign cumencies are accounted for in Pakistand Rupess al the exchange rales
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setiement of such
transactions and from the translation al year end exchange rates for monelary assoels and labilities donominated in
forelgn currencies are recognised in the Income Statement.

Note 2024 2023
BALANCES WITH BANKS (Rupees "000) ———
- In savings accounis 51 3,717,907 1.502 321
- In current accounis 52 28 436 37,566
3,746 343 1,530 887

These carry profit at the rates ranging betwoeen 12.00% to 21.30% por annum (2023 12.52% to 20.25% per annum)
and include Rs. 161 million (2023. Rs. 202 84 million) mainlained with MCB Islamic Bank Limited (a relaled party)
which carries profil at the rate of 19.70% (2023: 18.50%) per annum.

These include balance held with MCEB Bank Limited {a related party) of Ris. 28 23 million (2023: Rs. 37.51 million).

Note 2024 2023
INVESTMENTS (Rupees 000} —————
Investmants at "fair value through profit or loss"
Unlisted securities - Corporate sukuk certificates 6.1 498,557 658,539
Listed securities - Corporate sukuk cerlificates 62 405 987 405 581
GoP ljarah Sukuk cortificates 63 7,250 638 559 622
8,155,182 1,623,742
At amortised cost
Term deposit receipts 6.4 - 555 000
B 155 182 2178 742

e e e e e e e e Y

Unlisted socurities - Corporate sukuk certificates
Certificales have a face value of Rs_ 1,000,000 ecach unless staled othorwise

Sald Camng | it | .r ""“‘:'
Privcpal Mty poirde | sty | et | et Jume) e ] v ] S ]
Ko Rl | o T | e & L ":h during ] 30,204 | S, | Jem H.u..:,n"ut “’:::"
l- o bl ] s [y [
——— Wi of cwificates {Rupesss T6E) %
Chemical
Ghai Chomical dusies.~~ Almeely February 3, February 3, 3 months KEOR phis 1,000 - 1 E 5 : 5l g .
Limded” {A, PACRA) AT WM beserdeo LOTE
Commercial tamks
Mz Bk Limitn! Mol Juuayd, Loy, EmohsKEORpus 55 - W M5 MEWA 2777 B 2M 1S
(AR, VIS, non i) AN AN baserdool 080%
Mz Bk Limitn! Almardy Docomber Docerber §monhs KEORghus 272 - @B W W s 18 1m0 2n
(AR, VIS, oSk} A0 XN besardsd 035%
[ita i Bank Pebistan~ Almetrty  Docomber December § mositis KEIOR plus .z - n zm zan 7 oom o
L (AR, VIS, b 1M 1ND  hserded 07
Pharmaceuticals
Aspn Prarms (Privie) Ll Almelrly Novomber Novarber 3 monhs KEORpus 2,000 - 2m s . - & -
(A VS) NAT XA bessrdnd L5%
Tatal 2% 2t June 30, 2024 i )
Total 2. 2t June 30, 2023 BILZI RSN (M

* Wiomina vaos of these sulubs cxfificatos i Re 100,000 per crfiicale.
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Listed securities - Corporate sukuk cerificates

Certificates have a face value of Rs. 5,000 each unless stated othorwise

o Corg | Bt | it nu.:
e Frincipal A Maturity Prot rain s 2l July | T | et ) vl 5 ) e 5 -
| mdemplons de o L ": durng e 30,2804 | Juse | Jume 3, m‘un P
- | OB |y | Fund | et
——— Mumber of corificates [T==y0] b
Energy
Pobickn Encgy Suluk-0 Almately  May2l, Mey2,  Geods KEORkss 81100 = BLADD 405581 405987 o AN 4w
(Ueaed, radd) W MM beserand DAY
Total 25 t Jumo 38, 204 [T [
Total =5 at Juno-30, 2023 4B.I¥ 405581 [
GoP ljarah Sukuk certificates
Sl Wariel Yahe iz a
Purchased i percariage of
Mame o semmity Teoar | e date | Moty dae| g i “:::: dugte | T; "'"‘ &2 e mlin-h o kel
™ b jur | o, -u-l, ot | vahueot
-~ Fund | imvesimens
T p— —— [Rupazz T %
Gowernment of Pakistan- farah Subuk
GoP baah Sukok Cofficals Yy Decomber Docombsr Woghed swa - 175,000 - RN EOME 15050 W o= 185
CXL-VRR LM 42 8 eonfs T-EE
GoP lguh Sukk Coiates Ty A 17, Agul 17, A . Fm T . - 5 . -
- Xd-FRR vl 2
GoF mahSuk Coliicales. Tyewr Apd 7T, Al 17, Wenhedmesme - 1L00G000 11000000 - E = 2
- X0-VRR 24 & mits T-Bills
GoP faah Sulch Corffiales 1y Ocioberd, Ocloberd, AT - THEE T - - - - -
- KA1 - FRR puirc] Fabe]
G faah Suht Corfficten. 1o Mopsl?, Aupsl?,. 2O0% - AN 40300 E z g : E
- X000 - FRR T3 pirL|
GOP famh Suluk Corficahis 1yer  Augpst?, August?, Woghsd sioes - 12,000 - G Lic O v el 1 1 010 is
- KO0 -VRR 2073 il 6 mois T-Bis
GoP fah Sub Coificates. fyear Jiyi2 duyi2 Py 3 - B0 BDOO0  1RD00  VIRDO1 MA0N B om 1HE
- XXV - FRA i}
GoP f=ah Sukk Corffeales Tyexr Mah 15, Mamh i, Tk - 5 (0 SI00  4ELME  MELETS .| am 568
-FRR 4 s
GoP fosh Sulk Cofficals 1y Seplombor Scplomber Wegheimeme - J0S000 A0 TS I4pM i) 2 1w
- IR - VHR 20,50 NN 6 monis T-His
GoP farsh Subult Cerifiates Sy Ducomber  Docomber 61 - Jaagan TEODD IMBMD 33510 I35 m 285 18
-3 -FRR C0 v R v
GoP [geh Sub& Codificales 3was  Docembor  Docember  Weghled avoege - 75000 25000 400000 2S04 MS5ED M) im 106
-XLI-VRR AN AN 6 oonis T-BlE
GoP fah Sukd Cofficaies Jyeas Jmway M, Jaway™,  H05% 3 kel 1] s W0 W50 2 ik 1] 14
- FRR-PEX 202 T
GoP fareh Subl Corfficales. Bygas Jaway M, Januay M, Weghlsd sarsge - 487 S IBT50  AETSD  AESETT 4 EL ) EM
-VRR-PSX M HET 5 monifs T-Hils
GoP faeh Suht Corificalen. Jyeas  Jurm2f, Jumed 2L - B0 000 I [ R 1) 1. 48 688
- ¥KIV-FRR IS A6
0P famh Suluk Corffiihis Sywars  Decerber  Decemier 57 - 14W0000  S0G00D 000 95214T  OERGM o4 TE 1l
- K00V -FRR LI, SR i
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Sald|
Purchasad
Profit caln Ae d My . mmnd | Asad Jani
Kz of ey Ti fumue date | Maturity e
= w | am | TR e |
= P
J— e e p—
o frah Subl Collicabis. Syers  Docorber Docovder Woghelsermy - SEIO00  A0000 IS0 BIHI 35 Mr 2 m
- LIl -VER AT 4 EPR G mondhs T-GEs
Go” karah Sulk Codlicales Sy=s Ocioberf, Ociobor &, 'Weghied svre - 185,000 00 M 1ESEE 1,67 151 .|
- X0 - VHE 0 A% 6 mchs 1-Gs
0P fairah Sukkl Cortficalis Syers Jucry 24, Janery 4, Woghied rzgo 1237500 - NS0 1ZEES 1ZBES  MBE 00 %0
- WRRPSX 204 AP murdhs -Gk
GoP farah Subuk Colicales Syiers Jauary 4, Janury 24, 1549% = 912 50 - SIS 9EE ST [y T ik
-FRR-PEX 20 i}
G farah Skl Corfficals Syass Oclober 26, Ociober 26, Wghiad seram 200,000 MM e 5 16 247
0N -FRR i, A2 Gmodhs T-Biks
BoP forat Subk Corificzes: Symrs My, July25,  Worlsdmecge 1000 150K - MM TEME TRMS & am i
- X0- VRRE A 75 & mordhs T-Bills
Total 2 at Jume 30, 2024 o 4] b
Tolal 2= &l June 30, M2 R T ] 1,45y
Term deposit receipts
Warket vaioe
S Faco i Carring | Market |  Uovuaiised :'
i e |ssun datel Y vatue 26 al| value = o] apomcisfion | pescaiage
) daln | g gt July E'_""; Sold /matarod | As 2 Jung| Jne 38, | June3, |{diminuiion) 25 af Hu ":::
o 20 | IR g mayear | 2 | B | B | Jumedn g | SO
Yo {hae Fund | svestmants
Riapests [0 =— —
MCB [slomic Bank Limited  1550% Acgust Acqust 555,000 555,000
{a related party of the Fund) 49077 34 73
Tokal as at Juna 30, 2024 _
Totad as af June 30, 2023 555000 555000
Note 2024 2023
Net unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on re-measurement —-—— (Rupees "000)
of investments classified as "financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss®
Market value of investments 61,62 &63 8,155,182 1,623,742
Less: Camying value of investiments 61,62 &63 (8,108,379) (1,639,724)
45,803 (15,982}
PROFIT RECEIVABLES
Profit receivable on:
< v —_— 62,514 23,986
- Gorporate sukkuk certificates 13,546 28,620
- GoP ljarah Sukuks cerfificates 396,030 41,654
- Term deposit receipis - 71,643
432,090
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Notco 2024 2023

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND (Rupees "000") —————

OTHER RECEIVABLES
Securnty deposits with:

- Mational Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) 2.500 2500

- Ceniral Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) 100 100
Prepayments 296 270
Other receivables 32,158 11,492
Advance fax 8.1 6,190 6,208

41,244 20,570

As per clause 47(B) of part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, payments made fo
collective investment schemes [(CiS5s) are exempt from withholding tax under section 151 and 150. However, during
prior years, withholding tax on profit on debt securifies and profit on savings accounts with banks paid to the Fund was
deducted by varous withholding agents based on the interpretation isswed by FBR vide letter C. no. 1{43) DG
(WHTN2008-VOL I-66417-R dated 12 May 2015 which reguires every withholding agent to withhold income tax at
applicable rates in case a valid exemption. cerdificate under section 158(1) issued by the concemed Commissianer of
Inland Revenue {CIR) is not produced before him by the wilhholdee. The tax withheld on profit on debt securities and
profit on savings accounts with banks amounts to Rs. 619 million (2023 Rs. 621 million). Pending resolution of the
matter, the amount of withholding tax deducted on profit on debt securifies and profit on savings accounts with banks
paid to the Fund has been shown as Advance tax under ‘Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables’ as
at Jurve 30, 2024 as, in the opinion of the management, the amount of tax deducted at source will be refunded.

For this purpose, the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAFP) on behalf of varnous mutual funds (including the
Funds being managed by the Managemen!l Company) had filed a pattbon in the Honourable Sindh High Couwrt (SHC)
chaflenging the above menfioned interpretation of the Federal Board of Revenue (FBER) which was decided by the
SHC in favour of FER. A petifion was filed in the Supreme Court of Pakistan by the Funds fogether with other CiSs
(managed by the Management Company and other Asset Management Companies} whereby the Supreme Court
granted the petitioners leave to appeal from the initial judgment of the SHC.

Note 2024 2023
PAYABLE TO MCB INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED —— (Rupees "000°) —————
- MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Management remuneration payable g1 6,536 2427
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneration of Management Company 9.2 850 315
Sales load payable 3232 566
Milocated expenses payable 93 798 351
Selling and marketing expenses payable a4 9,194 2 486
Shariah advisory fee payable 30 o0

20,640 6,150

As per reguiation 61 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entited to a remuneration equal to an
amount not exceeding the maximum rate of management fee as disclosed in the offering document subject to the
fotal expense ratio limit

Keeping in view the maximum allowable threshold, the Management Company has charged s remuneration at the
rates ranging from 0.45% to 10.00% (2023 : 3.25% to 5.00%) of the gross eamings of the scheme calculated on a
daily basis during the year ended June 30, 2024. The remuneration is payable to the Management Company monthly
in arears.

During the year, an amount of Rs. 8.00 million (2023; Rs. 4.25 million) was charged on account of sales tax on
remuneration of the Management Company levied through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 at the rate of
13.00% (2023: 13.00%) and an amount of Rs. 7.46 million (2023: Rs. 4.38 million) has been paid to the Management
Company which acis as a collecling agent.
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10.2

In accordance with Reguiation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company ks entitied to charge fees and
expenses related o registrar =ervices, accounfing, operafion and wvaluation services, mrelated o a Collective
Investment Scheme (CIS).

The Management Company, based on its own discretion, has charged such expenses at the rate of 0% fo 1.81%
(2023: 0.10%) per annum of the average annual net assets of the Fund during the year.

The SECP has allowed the Asset Management Companies to charge selling and marketing expenses to all categories
of open-end mutual funds, upto a maximum limit approved by the Board of Directors of Management Company as part
of annual plan.

Accordingty, the Management Company has charged sefling and marketing expenses based on s discretion ranging
from 0.05% to 0.65% (2023 0.10% to 0.65%) duly authonsed by the Board of Directors while keeping in view the
annual plan, overall retumn and the iotal expense ratio limit of the Fund as defined under the NBFC Regulations.

Hote 2024 2023
PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY {Rupees "000) ——————
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE
Trustee remuneration payable 101 749 264
Sindh Sales Tax payable on Tnisiee remuneration 102 a7 34
846 288

The Trustee is entiied to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust
Deed at the rate of 0.075% (2023: 0.075%) per annum of the average annual net assets of the Fund.

During the year, an amount of Rs. 0.81 million (2023; Rs. 0.57 million) was charged on account of sales tax on
remuneration of the Trusiee levied through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 at the rate of 13.00% (2023:
13.00%) and an amount of Rs. 0.75 million (2023: Rs. 0.58 million) was paid to the Trustee which acls a collecting

agent.

Mote 2024 2023
PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE (Rupees "000°) ——-
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
111 749 1.171
Fee payable 749 1,171

In accordance with the NBFC Reqguiations, a Collective Investment Scheme (CI5) is required to pay non-refundabile
fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Accordingly, the Fund has charged SECP fee
at therate of 0.075% (2023 0.02%) per annum of the daily net assets during the year.

Further, the Fund is required to pay SECP fee within fifteen days of the close of every calendar monih. Previously, the
Fund was required to pay SECP fee within three months of the close of accounting year.

Mote 2024 2023
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES — (Rupees "000") ———
Provision for federal excise duty payable on
- Remuneration of the Management Company 12.1 8,639 8,639
- Sales load ’ 3.028 3,028
Auditors’ remuneration payable 849 554
Printing charges payable 40 40
Brokerage and setfiement charges payable - 282
Legal and professional charges payable 738 739
Capital gain tax payable 40 873 4 050
Other payables 23 1,986
54,191 19.318
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The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services to include Asset
Management Companies (AMCs) as a result of which FED at the rate of 16 percent on the remuneration of the
Manzgement Company and sales load was applicable with effect from June 13, 2013. The Management Company
was of the view that since the remuneration was already subject to provincial sales tax, further levy of FED would
result in double taxation which did not appear fo be the spint of the law. Hence, on September 4, 2013 a constitutional
pefiion was filed with the Sindh High Court (SHC) by the Management Company together with various other asset
management companies challenging the levy of FED.

With effect from July 1, 2018, FED on services provided or rendered by non-banking financial instiutions dealing in
services which are subject to provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2016.

Dunng the year ended June 30, 2017, the SHC passed an order whereby all nobices, proceedings taken or pending,
orders made, duty recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of the rendering or
providing of services (o the extent as challenged in any relevant petition) were set aside. In response to this, the
Deputy Commissioner inland Revenue has filed a2 Civil Petition for leave to appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan
which is pending adjudication.

In view of the above, the Fund has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED on remuneration of the
Management Company and sales load with effect from July 01, 2016. However, as a matter of abundant caution the
provision for FED made for the period from June 13, 2013 till June 30, 2016 amounting to Rs. 11.66 million is being
retained in these financial statements of the Fund as the matter is pending before the Supreme Court of Pakistan.
Had the provision for FED not been made, the Net Asset Value of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 would have been
higher by Re. 0.10 (2023: Re. 0.28) per unit

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments oulstanding as al June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023.

2024 2023
AUDITORS' REMUNERATION {Rupees "000°)
Annual audit fee 525 ars
Fee for half yearly review of condensed interim financial stalements 225 187
Fee for other cedilications 115 128
Out of pocket expenses 118 69
983 758
Sindh Sales Tax i) 61
1,062 820
TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The tolal expense ratio (TER) of the Fund as al June 30, 2024 i 1.63% (2023: 0.99%) which includes 0.18% (2023:
0.11% ) representing government levies on the Fund such as sales laxes, fee lo the SECP. This ratio is within the
maximum fimit of 2.50% (excluding government levies) under the NBFC Regulations for a collective investment
scheme calegorised as an “Income Schemea”.

TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exempt from income 1ax under clause 99 of Parl | of the Second Schedule o the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced
by capital gains, whether reslised or unrealised, is distibuted amongst the unit holders as cash dividend.
Furthermore, as per Regulation 63 of the NBFC Regulaions, the Fund is required to distribute not less than 90% of its
accounting income for the year derved from sources other than capital gains as reduced by such expenses as are
chargeable thereon to the unit holders. Since the management has distributed the required minimum percentage of
income eamed by the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2024 fo the unil holders in the manner as explained above,
no provision for taxation has been made in these financial statements during the year.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Parl IV of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
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TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS AND RELATED PARTIES

Retated pariies [ connected persons of the Fund include the Management Company, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Management Company, MCEB Bank Limiled being the Holding Company of the
Management Company, the Trustee, directors, key management personnel and other associaled underiakings and
connecied persons. Connecled persons also include any person beneficially owing direcly or indirectly 10% or more
of the units in the issue | net assets of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons essentially comprise of sale and redemption of unils, fee on account of
managing the affairs of the Fund, sales load, other charges and distribution payments to connected persons. The
transactions with connecled persons are in the nomal course of business, al contacied rales and al ferms
determined in accordance with market rales.

Remuneration to the Management Company of the Fund i= delermined in accordance with the provisions of the NBFC
Regulations.

Remuneration lo the Trustee of the Fund is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

Allocaled expenses and selling and markeling expenses are chamed Io the Fund by the Management Company
subject to the maximum prescribed Tolal Expense Ratio.

The details of transactions camied out by the Fund with connected persons during the year and balances with them as
at year end are as follows:

Forthe year  For the year
ended June ended June

30, 2024 30, 2023
Details of transacfions with connected persons are as follows: ~—————— (Rupees "000°)
MCE Investment Managemeant Limited - Management Company
Remuneration of the Management Company 61.543 32 736
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 8,001 4 256
Allocated expenses 7.685 5,809
Seliing and marketing expenses 35,055 5,646
Shariah advisory fes 450 710
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration of the Trusiee 6,261 4 394
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee B14 571
CDC setflement charges ar 5
MCE Bank Limiied
Bank charges 1486 140
MCB Islamic Bank Limited
Profit on savings accounts with banks 98 586 12723
Profit on term deposit receipis 12 440 71,643
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17.3

2024 2023
Amounts outstanding at year end |Rupees “000%)
MCE Investment Management Limited - Management Company
Management remuneration payable 6,536 2422
Gindh Sales Tax payable on remuneration of the Management Compamny 850 315
Allocated expenses payable 798 351
Back-end load payable 2 2488
Shariah advisory fee payable a0 i
Selling and marketing expenses payable 9104 2 486
Sales load payable 3,232 566
Ceniral Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Trustee remuneration payable 7492 264
Sindh Sales Tax payable on Trustee remuneration g7 34
Securty deposit 100 100
MCE Bank Limited
Balance with bank 28,233 ar514
MCE Islamic Bank Limited
Batance with bank 1,611 202,819
Profit receivable on savings account 411 508,877
Term deposit receipts 555,000
Profit receivable on ierm deposit receipls - 71,643
Transactions during the year with connected persons | related parties In units of the Fund:
For the year ended Juns 30, 2628
As at July lszued Rodh i Asat jure (| As gl July | |ssusd Rk i As &l Jurs
n, 35 fior cash 30, g 0, 520 | forcash 32, 204
[inits {Rupess in 000 —————
Associated companies:
MCE vesiment Management Limiad G61,.940 - E1.80 - 6,378 - 6,379 -
Adamee Lifs Assiranca Company Limilad - 2547B00 2016193 531EDV - 2BD04T Z2R0B3 B5318
Adamies Life Assrance Compeny Limited - Tamean - ASEREI3 4968633 - - 513884 515343 -
Hyurxdai Mishat Molor Privale Limited - Employees Providant Fund - 1,651,368 1213292 438106 - 186228 141,667 45590
Anl Habib Securfies Limilad - Employees Providend Furd Trst 73293 - 73293 - 7,548 T 526 -
MCH F5L Truslee Alhamra Smard Poriolio TOREI| 1O7ETME AU ZA3  O7E44  B2250 112384 110,208 101 57E
Adamiee Ihseanoe Company Limiled - Window Talahd Opemiors - AX5IT3 1520303 1836870 - 357531 188014 1900105
Key managemant personnad * 5063 1902208 1030541 172 5362 12547 117560 11009
Mandate under discretionary portiolio services 201242 312820 ZI0BTA3 12HTI0 20T BT ZMMALT 127134

Unit holders holding 10% or more unds -

* This refiscts tha posilion of refaled parly [ connecied persans slehe as al Jane 30, 2024
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For i year ended Jupe 30 2023
A5 at bzpad AsdJue || As s =T s @t uns
H,:&; hnﬂJm 0, 2603 51,'."-:5r R ey 30, 2033
Tinits [Rupbes i 900
Associated compames:
MCH imesiment Management Limiad - TISET  B5AGET 61,540 - 75388 TOEIR 6373
Adamioe Liln Assurance Company Limiled Amasnzt Fund - AFI0A 4B - - RPO00 52 B0 -
Adamies Life Asswrance Company Limiled - Tamean - EBEISETE G6E695G7E - - TOOr3 TIa 15 -
Hyurdai Nishat Molor Privale Limited Employess Provident Fond - AMT2E 417208 5 - 44813 46238 -
Anf Habib Secuabies Lamiled Employees Prowident Furd Trst ETA4D - 14,147 3,283 B.E33 - 1,500 7548
MCH F5L Tosiee Alamms Smarl Porfoko 1006242 25110 475721 TEEEN 103108 270r 50068 2 E2250
Adamipe Lifa Assursnce Company Limilad - Saman - M5 14541 - - 150 18 -
Adamiee Life Azswrance Company Limited - Managed Geowih Fund - 8609 8508 - - 835 BEG -
Key managemant personnel * 126373 3735 4788 52063 12811 40568 43BM4 5362
Mandate under discretionary portfolio services 756 4045116 3BME30 207242 TT 437854 432782 20726
Linit holders holding 10% or more uniis - - - - -
*This reflects the posilion of relted party / connecied persons sishs as al hune 30, 2003
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 2024
At fair valuae
At “':::“d through Total
rofit or loss
{Rupees "000')
Financial assets
Balances with banks 3,746,343 3,746,343
Investmanls = 8,155,182 8,155,182
Advance against PO subscription of Corporate sukuk cerlificates = - -
Profit receivables 432 090 432 080
Deposits and other recelvables 34 758 - 34,758
4,213,191 B, 155,182 12,368 373
Financial liabilities
Payable to MCB Investment Managemant Limited
- Management Company 20,640 20,640
Payabile o Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee BB 846
Accrued expanses and other labilities 1,651 1,651
23,137 23137
2023
At fair value
At “'::“" through Total
or loss
{Rupeos ‘000)
Financial assels
Balances wilh banks 1,539 887 - 1.539 887
Invastments a5, (00 1,623,742 2178742
Advance against [P0 subscription ol corporala
sukuk cerdificales 397,000 - 397,000
Profil receivables 165,903 - 165,903
Daposils and olhar recoivablos 14,002 - 14,002
EIE'H !B-EI:! 1 IE::E.‘!.IM:! 4%‘ iﬁ}H
Financial liabilities
Payable to MCB lrvestmeanl Management Limited
- Managemenl Company 6,190 - 6,150
Payable o Cantral Deposilory Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustes 288 - 288
Accrued expenses and other labllites 3,601 - 3601
10,089 - 10,089
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Fund's objective in managing rsk is the creation and profection of unit holders’ valve. Risk s inherent in the
Fund's activilies, bul il = managed through monitoring and conlrolling activiies which are primarily sel up o be
parformed based on limits established by the Management Company, the constitutive documenits of the Fund and the
regulations and directives of the SECP. These limils reflect the business strategy and markel environment of the
Fund as well as the level of the nsk that the Fund s willing to accept. The Board of Directors of the Managemonl
Company supervises the ovorall nsk management approach within the Fund. The Fund is exposed to market nsk,
liquidity rsk and credil nsk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

Market risk

Markel nsk i the rsk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate as a resull of
changes in markot prices.

Tha Managemen! Company manages the market rsk through diversificabon of the investment portfolio and by
following the internal guidalines establishad by the Investment Commitiee.

Markel nsk comprses of three ypes of rsks: vieid [ profit rate nsk, currency risk and price risk.
{iy Yield ! profit rato risk

Yield [ profil rate risk & the sk that the faie value or futuee cash flows of a financial Instrument will flucluate as a
resull of changes in marketl yield ! profit rates. As of June 30, 2024, the Fund s exposed lo such risk on s balances
held with banks and investment in sukuk certificates. The Investment Committes of the Fund reviews the portfolio of
the Fund on a regular bases o ensure thal the risk s managed within the acceplable limits.

a) Sensitivity analysis for vardable rate instruments

Presently, the Fund holds balances wilh banks and KIBOR based sukuk cedificates which expose the Fund o cash
flow yield / profit rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase [ decrease in applicable rates on the st repricing
date with all other varables held constant, the net income for the year and net assets of the Fund would have boen
higher / lower by Rs. B4 78 million (2023: R=. 36 26 milllon)

The composiion of the Fund's investment portfolio, KIBOR rates and the rates announced by the Financal Markets
Asszociation of Pakistan are expectod lo chango over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June
30, 2024 iz not necessarily indicative of U iImpact on the Fund's nol assets of fulure moverments in yield | profit

Yield [/ profil rate sensitivily position for on-balance sheet inancial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual
repricing of maturity date and for off-balance sheol instruments is based on the setilement data.

Thee Fund's yleld / profit rate sensitivity related to financial assets and financial llabiliies as al June 30, 2024 can be
determined as follows:
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2024
Exposed to yiedd ! profit rale risk Mok & I]
mr::;ﬁm Up to three | throe months |More than one| l“’“:; Total
manths | and up to one yE sk
year TTeS
Rupess (D)
Financial assels
Balknces with banks 12.00% - 21.30% | 3,717,907 - - 28436 | 3745343
Investments
Unksled securibes - Conporale subkuk cerificales 21.18% - 22.33% 287,718 210,778 - - 488,557
Listled securiios - Corporate sukuk cerilicaltes 21.149% - 405,987 - - 405887
GoP farah Sukuk cerlificales 15.40% - 22 80% | 2129863 | 2313930 | 2806836 - 7,250 638
Term deposit mosiplks = = = 2 =
Profil receiebles s - - 432,080 432 080
Deposils and other recenables - - - 34,758 34,758
6135548 2930704 2 Z2B0G836 2435784 12368373
Financial liabilities
Payable io MCH Invesimen! Menagemend Limiled
- Marnagament Company - - - 20,640 20,640
Payable lo Central Deposilory Company al
Pakistan Limited - Trustes - = e B4 B4G
Accrued espenses and ofher kabdilies - - 1,651 1.651
- - - 23137 23137
On-balance sheet gap {a) 6135549  Z530,/04  ZB000a0  A72147 12345 20
Oif-balance sheel financial mstruments - - - L 1
Off-balance sheet gap [b) - - - - =
Total profit rate sensitivity gap (atb) 6,135549 20830704 2 B06B836
Cumulative profil rate sensitivily gap 6135548 9066253 11,871,085
2023
Exposed to yield | profil rale risk
Yieid | profit rate o n: il |
pre Up to three | three months | More than ona| ml?h Total
0%} months | and up fo one year L risk
year
Rupsess (D)
Financial assels — — — =
Baknces with banks 12.53% - 20.25% | 1.502.321 - - a7 568 | 1,530 887
Investments
Unfisted securifies - Corporate sukuk certificales 22 6% - 22 12% 389,259 269 280 - - G658 539
Listed seoumites - Corporale sukuk corilicaies 22.068% - 405,581 - - 405,581
GoP fah Sukuk ceriicales 17.65% 558,622 - - - 550 E22
Term deposit recaipls 15.15% 555,000 - - - 555,000
Advance aganst PO subscriplion of corporalo sukuk carlificsles - = - 287,000 397000
Profil receivshles - - - 165,203 165,903
Deposis and oiber receiables - - - 14,082 14,052
3,006, 202 674 861 - 614,581 4,295 624
Financizl lizbilities
FPayabile o MCH Invesimen] Management Lirmifad
- Managemenl Company - - - G, 180 6,180
Payabile io Central Dapositcry Company ol
Pakistan Limiled - Trusles - - - 288 298
Accruad oepensas and olber Gabililies - - 3.601 3.601
= = = 10089 10089
On-balance sheet gap {a) 3,006, 202 674 BET - B4 ATZ 4 285535
Oif-balance sheel financial mstruments - - - - [
Off-balance sheel gap (b) - - i i -
Total profil rate sensitivity gap (a+b) 3,006 202 674,861 -
Comulative profil rate sensilivity gap 3008202 3681063 3681063
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19.2

(i} Currency risk

Curmmency nsk is the rsk that the fair value or fJuture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in forcign exchange rates. The Fund does not have any financial instruments in foreign currencies and
hence is not exposed to such risk.

(i) Price risk

Price risk is the rsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuste becauss of changes
in market prices (other than those ansing from profit rate fsk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the sk that the Fund may not be able fo generate sufficient cash resources to seftle its obligation in
full a= they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous fo the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to daily redemptions at the option of unit holders. The Fund’s approach to managing liquidity is
to ensure, as far as pessible, that the Fund will always have sufiicient figuidity to meet s kabiliies when due under
both normal and stressed conditions. The Fund's policy is, therefore, to invest the majorly of ils assets in
investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed and are considered readily realisable.

As per the NBFC Regulations, the Fund can borrow in the short-term to ensure seiflement the maximuom mit of
which ie fifteen percent of the nel assets up to 90 days and would be secured by the assets of the Fund.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liguidity, the Fund may also withhold daily redemption requests in excess of fon
percent of the units in issue and such mequests would be treated as redemption requests qualfying for being
processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests come
down fo a lovol below fen porcent of the units then in issue. The Fund did not withhold any redemplions during the

year.

The table below summarnes the maturity profile of the Fund's financizl instruments. The analysis into relevant maturity
groupings is based on the remaining year at the end of the reporiing period to the contractual maturty dates.
However, the assels and liabiliies that are receivable / payable on demand including bank balances have been
included in the maturity grouping of cne month:

2024
Woro than one|  Meors fhian | More hul Firanaal
Within one | monthand | throe months |cne year and] More fthan | instrumonts Total
monkh uplo three | anduptoone | uplofive | five years | with no fxed
months pr | years | maturity
(Rupees in T}

Financial assots
Balances wilh banks 3,746,343 . - . - . 3,746 343
Invesiments

Unksted securifies - Corporale sukuk cerfficates - . - . 408 557 - 488 557

GoP lfjarah Sukuk cerfificates 113,057 206,654 614,085 | 4,064, 559 | 2152014 - 7,250,638

Term doposit recoipds . . - - - - .
Profit recesvables 432,054 : - : - - 432,080
Depesits and other recevables 271N —= - . — 7,557 | 34,758

4 318,590 286,504 614085 4084580 3056557 TB57 12368373

Financial liabilities
Payabie io MCB Invesiment Management

Limated - Management Comparny 20,640 - - B - - 20,840
Payabiz fo Central Dapesiiory Company

of Pakistan Limied - Trusies 845 . - ] - - BAG
Accrued expenses and other Eabilifies 802 48 - - - - 1,651

— 78 L : : : : BT

Nat financial assots TG PeMs  BAEh A0BA5Ed 3056051 765 1295036
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19.3.1

2023
More than one|  Wore than | Mora fhan Financial
Within one | monthand | three monibs |onn yoar More than | instrumonts Total
manth uplo thre | and uploone | uplofive | five yoars | wiih no flaed
it yoar | years malirity
{Rizpoes in 000)

Financial assets
Balances with banks 1,539 887 - - - = z 1,530,887
Ivesiments

Unilsted securities - Corporate suluk cerificales - - 3870 - 626 663 - 658,539

Listod sacurities - Corporate sukuk cofificates - B - - 405581 - 405 581

GoP ljarah Sukuk cedificaies 558 622 - - = " _ 550 G227

Terim desposil receipts - 555, 00 - - - B 555,000
Advance aganst (PO subscripton of corporate

sukuk corlificates - B 387,000 - - - 397,000
Profil recavables 165,903 - - - - - 165,803
Deposits and oihor roceivabioes G436 - - - - T 655 14,002

2271848 BL5 (00 423 /70 - 1,032 250 TE5E 4205604

Firancial llabilities
Payabie o MCB Investment Managanmant

Limiled - Management Company 6,190 = - - - - &,190
Payabile o Central Depostory Company

of Pakislan Limiled - Truslos 298 - - - - - 298
Acciued expenses and olher labilibes 3047 3 - - - - 3,601

G535 L] - - = = 70,080

Met financial assots 5 RG] aod 4k 428 870 - 1,032 250 Thoh 465 5ah
Credit risk

Credit rsk is the rsk thal the counlerparty o a firancial instrument will cause a financial loss o the Fund by falling lo
discharge its oblgation as it falls due. Credil risk arses from deposils with banks and finrancial institutions, profit
recavable on bank deposits, credil exposune ansing as a resull of investment in debl securities, profil recoivable on
debl securities and recetvable against conversion of units and sale of investments.

Credil risk anses from balances with banks and financial instruments, profit recelvable on balances with banks and
credil exposure arnsing on investments. Credil risk ansing on other financial assets is monilored through a regular
analysis of inancial position of brokers and other parties. For debt instrument seltiement, Delivery versus Paymaent
(O} moechanism appled by the Trustee of the Fund mindmises the credil sk In oaccordance with the risk
managemont policy of the Fund, the nvestment commiltee monilors the credit position on a daily basis which is
reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Management Company on a guarlerly basis.

The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure 0 credit risk:

2024 2023
Balance as per - Balance as por "
statement of mh statement of mm
azzots and i gl azzots and TXpas
Habil crodit risk Habil crodit risk
e (Ruipoes in ‘D00) [Rupees in "000)
Balances with banks 3.746. 343 3,746 343 1.539 BBV 1.539, 887
Investments B.155.182 4 544 2.178,742 1,619,120
Advance agalnst IPO subscripion of corporate
sukuk cerificales - - 397 000 3497000
Profit receivables 432 080 76,060 165903 124 245
Deposits and other receivables 34 758 34 758 14 052 14,002
12,368 373 4 761,705 4 205 624 3,684 348

Difference in the balance as per stalement of asset and Habilities and maximum exposure is due o the fact that
investments in govemmeant secunties of Rs. 7 25064 million (2023: Rs. 559.62 million) and profit receivable from
these securilies of Rs. 356 03 millien (2023: Rs. 41,65 millon) are nol exposed o credil sk
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19.3.2 Credit quality of financial asselts

The Fund's significanl credil risk (other than in govemnmment backed sccurities) anfses mainly on account of ils
investment in sukuk certificates, placements in banks and profit accrued thereon. The credit rating profile of balances
with banks = as follows:

% of financial azzeots

ax d to credit risk
Rating Eﬁ 1 | 2023

s, 0.79% 252

Al B 68% 0.01

A 18.47% 8430

At 0.06%: -

A & 13.17
100.0H0% 100.00

Ratings of investmenis in sukuk cerdificales have been disclosed in relaled notes o these financial statements.
Sinco, the assets of the Fund are held with crodit worthy counterparties, therefore any significant credit rsk is
mitigated.
Concantration of credit risk
Concontration of credil risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similady affect groups of
counlerparties whose aggregate credit exposure ks significant in relaion to the Fund's total credil exposure. The
Fund's portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are entored into with diverse credil-
worthy counterparties theroby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

20 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Fair value Is tho price that would be recelved o sell an assel or paid lo transfer a liability In an orderly transaction
betwean market participants-at the measurement date. Conseguently, diferences can arise belweon carrying values
and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption thatl the Fund is a going concem without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or o underiake a transaction on advarse lpms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open markel are revalued at the markel prices prevailing at the reporting
date_ The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and kabilities s considered not 1o be significanily different
from the respective book valuss,

20.1  Fair value hierarchy
International Financial Reporting Standand 13, 'Fair value measurement” requires the Fund to classify assels using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inpuls used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the folowing levols:
Level 1: quoted prnces (unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or labilities;

Lewal 2. inputs other than guoted prices included within lovel 1 that are observable for the assed or ability oither
directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly {iLe. derived from prices); and

Lesvel 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are nol based on observable markel data (Le. unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, the Fund holds the following financial instrument measured at fair value:

2024
Financial assets "at fair value through Levali || Lewel2 || Levald || Total
profit or loss' {Rupees in ‘000)
Unlizsted socurnties - Corporate sukuk cerdificates - 488 557 - 498 557
Listed securifies - Corporale sukuk cerificales 405987 - - 405 987
GoP ljarah Sukuk certificates 2 679451 4 571,187 - 7.250,638
3,085,436 2,068, 44 - 8,155,182
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2023
Financial assets "al fair value through Levell || Level2 || Level3d || Total
profit or loss" {Rupees in "000}
Uniested secunties - Corporals sukuk carlificales - 658, 539 - 658,539
Listed securilies - Corporale sukuk certiicates 405,581 - - 405 581
GoP ljarah Sukuk cerlificales - 558 622 - 568,622
405 581 1,218,161 - 1,623 742

UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unil holders’ fund is mpresentad by medeamable unils. These unils are enlilled o dividends and 1o paymeant of a
proporbonate share based on the Fund's Nel Assel Value per unil on the redemplion date. The relevant movemenis
ame shown on the "Statement of Movemaeanl i Unil Holders' Fund®.

The Fund has no resirclion on the subscription and redemption of unlls. As required under the NBFC Regulalions,
2008 every opon end schamo shall maintain fund sizo (Le. nel assels of the Fund) of Rs. 100 million al all timas
during the life of the schamea. The Fund has histoncally maintained and compliad with the regquiremeant of minimum
fund size al all imes.

The Fund®s objectives when managing unil holders' lunds are o salfegquard its ability o conlinue a5 a going concam
g0 that it can conlinue o provide melums o tha unil bolders and o mainlain a strong base of assels o meel

unaxpectad losses or opportunilies.

In scoordance with the rsk managomenl policies as siated in nole 19, the Fund endeavours o invesl the
subscriptions received in appropriate invesiment avenues while maintaining sufficient iguidity 1o meel redemplions,
such liguidity being augmenied by dispesal ol invesiments or short-lerm borrowings, where necessary.

PATTERN OF UNITHOLDING June 30, 2024 —
Number of Mumber of Investmant Percantage
Details of pattern of unitholding unit holdors unils held amount investmaent
{Rupees in “000) S
Individuals #8209 87,744,020 89,130,704 74 24%
Insurance companias 5 2 094,621 217 968 1.7 7%
Asszocialed companios 4 3. T2 728 392 593 320%
Retiremenl funds 40 15,063,153 1,567 482 12.75%
Public Limiled Companies 3 854,042 B8 AY2 0.72%
Others 39 B 656,625 H00.814 T-32%
B.300 118,185 188 12,208 433 100.00%
June 30, 2023
Number of | Humber of | Investment Percentage
ufil holdars unils held armodinl investmanl
(Rupeas in "000) S
Individuals 7354 31,784 216 3273405 F6.57%
Insurance compangs 5 1,716,444 176,74 4. 13%
Associaled companias 2 871,924 89,798 2 10%
Retiramant funds 42 5,224 504 538,063 12.59%
Public Limited Companies - - - 0.00%
Olhers 29 1.913,665 197 085 4.61%
FA32 41,510,753 4275125 100.00%
TOP TEN BROKERS ! DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID
Delalls of commisskon paid by the Fund o lop lan brokers by percenlage during the year are as lollows:
2024
(Percentage)
1 Allalah CLSA Securities {Privata) Limited 61.12%
2 Paramounl Capiltal [Privale) Limiled 16.34%,
3 J5 Global Capital Limited 7.25%
4 AKD Securilies Limited i.25%
5 Aril Habib Limilad 6.04%
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2023
(Percontage)
1 AKD Securities Limited B0.B5%
2 Continental Exchange (Private} Limited 16.17%
3 JS Global Capital Limited 208%

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The 189th, 190th, 191th, 192nd, 193rd, 124th, 195th & 196th meeting of the Board of Directors were held on July 21,
2023, July 26, 2023, September 28, 2023, Oclober 12, 2023, October 18, 2023, February 02, 2024, April 19, 2024
and April 22, 2024 respectively. Information in respect of altendance by the directors and other persons in tha
meetings is given below:

Number of Humber of meelings
Name of directors Designation meefings || Atendanc Attended | Leave || Mectings nolaftended
held £ Iequi
Mr. Haroon Rashid Chairman 8 & 8
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Director 8 8 a - -
Syed Savaill Meekal Hussain Director B B 7 1 195th
Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Director B8 8 2] 2 1892nd, 195th
Mr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem ' Ex - Chief Executive Officer ] 5 5 - -
Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Director 8 8 5 3 190th, 192nd, 195th
Mr. Manzar Mushiag Director & 8 8 - -
Mr. Shoaib Mumizz Director 8 8 5 3 192nd, 193th, 195k
Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah Chief Executive Officer B k. 3 -
" Mr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem resigned from the Board with effect from Ociober 21, 2023,
*Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah has been appointed on the Board with effect from November 01, 2023
PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER
Details of members of Investment Commitiee of the Fund are as follows:
:‘; Hame Designathon Qualification Experience in years

1 Mir. Khewaja Khalil Shah® Chief Executive Officer MBA a2

2 Mr. Muhammad Asim Chief Investment Officar MBA, CFA 21

a3 hir. Aowats Abdul Sattar Portfolic Manager Equities MBA, CFA 13

4 Mr. Sasd Ahmed Head of Fixed Inoome MBA 18

13 Syed Abid Al Haad of Equities MBA, 16

B Mr. Ussma Igbal Fund Manager Graduate 20

*Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah appointed on the Board with effect from November 01, 2023,
Mr. Usama Igbal is the Managor of the Fund as at year end. Othor funds being managed by him are as follows.

Alhamra Islamic Money Market Fund;
- Alhamra Wada Plan VI,
- Alhamra Wada Plan IX;
- Alraymra Wada Plan X
- Alnharmra Wada Plan XI;
- Alhamra Smart Portiolio,
- Pakistan Income Fund;
. MCE Pakistan Fixed Reium Plan X0VI;
- MCE Pakistan Fixed Retwum Plan XV,
- MCEB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan X\
. MCE Pakizlan Fixed Retum Plan X1
- MCB DCF Fixed Retumn Plan |;
- MCB DCF Fixed Retum Plan I, and
- MCE DCF Fixed Retum Plan 1L
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CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Comesponding figures have been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these financial statements,
wherever necessary o facilitale comparison and lo conform with changes in presentation in the cumenl year. No
significant rearrangements or reclassifications were made in these financial slatements.

GENERAL

271 Figures have been munded off to the nearest rupes, unless otherwise siated.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial stalements were suthorised for issue on September 25, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

For MCB Invesiment Management Limited
{Management Company)

_'___.--_'_'_;-_:"-':_/" -.':'.’-‘.--"i' 1 &
L : - # mu‘gg‘

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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PATTERN OF UNITS HOLDING BY SIZE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Mo. of Unit Holders Unit holdings Total units held
5,659 A.001-10,000 83,141

1,016 B. 10,001 — 100,000 340,017

791 C. 100,001 - 1000,000 2,830,508

834 D. 1000,001 & Above 114,925,522

8,300 118,185,188
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Total Met Assets Value — Rs. in million 122384331 4, 7B3.3750 | 5575.1160 :
Net Assats value per unil — Rupees 1040607 1021635 | 1019608 101845
Ciosing Offar Prica 105.8245 1038052 | 103 6890 1035715
Closing Rapurchase Prico 104, 0607 1012077 | 101.0867 100.1156]
|Highest offer price per uni 125 8523 127264 | 110.2535 114.9713]
Lowest offer price per unit 1047835 1036083 | 103 5912 102 9665
|Highest Redemption price par uni 123.7547] 1108475 | 1084158 113.0550
Lowest Redempiion prica per uni 103.037] 1019609 | 101.8646 10,2507
Desiriion por ol — R ® 3055 B.B8AT B5076 11,1515
huaﬂu Annual Returm - %

Ona yaar 20,79 [ | 803 51| 11.63]
Two year 18.18) 12 25/ .79 .07 g_%
Thres year 1509} 10,33 .02 BT B

|

Met Inoome for the pesiod — Rs. i milion 1,575 B2f B44. 035 B45.2008 | 422 3480 357 2150
Distribution mads during the year — Rs. in million 1516.817] B30.770 6122110 | 4197500 34809930
Accumulated Capital Growth — Fs. in milion 588111 13 2560 2 0858 2 SO0 & 2230
Waighted average Portiolio Duration {Days) B4 767 1,351 EE| 1314

* Date of Distribution

Disclaimer

The pasl performance & nol necessarily indicative of fulure peformance and unit pices end investments and returms may go down, as well as up.
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